
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Community Safety, 
Environment and Residents 

Services Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Monday 24 April 2017 
7.00 pm 

Small Hall - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Larry Culhane (Chair) 
Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor Sharon Holder 
 

Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ainsley Gilbert 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy  
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

12 April 2017 
 

 
 

www.lbhf.gov.uk/Councillors-and-Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Community Safety, Environment and 
Residents Services Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 
24 April 2017 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  1 - 9 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 

 

4.   SCHOOL TRAVEL PLANS  10 - 25 

5.   THE FUTURE OF PARKING IN HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM  26 - 33 

6.   COMMERCIAL WASTE SERVICE  34 - 38 

7.   WORK PROGRAMME AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  39 - 43 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Community Safety, 
Environment and 

Residents Services 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Wednesday 1 March 2017 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Larry Culhane (Chair), Iain Cassidy, 
Charlie Dewhirst and Steve Hamilton 
 
Other Councillors: Daryl Brown, Sue Fennimore and Wesley Harcourt 
 
Officers: Mahmood Siddiqi, Ian Ross, Richard Duffill, Ullash Karia, Dave Page and 
Sarah Fox 
 
External Organisations 
Spacehive – Niraj Dattani 
Transport for London – Ed Boatman, Andrew Rogers and David Korzenoiwski  
 
31. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2017 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

32. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Sharon Holder. 
 

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

34. SPACEHIVE - CIVIC CROWDFUNDING PLATFORM  
 
Niraj Dattani, Spacehive, explained that Spacehive was a crowdfunding 
platform specifically for projects which would benefit the local community. The 
funding of community projects and assets by large numbers of citizens was 
an old idea, with the plinth for the statue of liberty in New York having been 
funded through a newspaper led campaign. Spacehive aimed to make access 
to crowdfunding easier for anyone who had a good community project. 
Spacehive also allowed projects to access money from organisations and 
philanthropists; typically the enthusiasm created through small donations from 
lots of people would encourage those with significant amounts of money to 
donate it to a project. Using crowdfunding also created social capital for 
projects as funders would feel ownership of the scheme; there were many 
examples of funders offering projects far more than just financial support. 
Spacehive had had 266 successful projects, with 53% of projects getting the 
funding they needed; this compared well to the international average of 23% 
of crowdfunded projects being successful.  
 
Mr Dattani explained that Hammersmith and Fulham Council had partnered 
with Spacehive and would be making £100,000 available to help fund 
proposals.  
 
A resident asked what the Council had done to publicise the opportunity. Mr 
Dattani explained that the opportunities available to residents had only 
recently been agreed and so there had been little publicity to date. There 
would however be significant publicity over the Spring and early Summer. 
 
A resident noted that crowdfunding through Spacehive included a verification 
stage. Mr Dattani explained that this was done by Locality, a national network 
of community organisations; the only things which were checked was would 
the project benefit the community and was it viable, although advice might 
well be offered. Project creators would then have to convince potential 
funders that their idea was a good one.  
 
A resident noted that Spacehive charged a fee for hosting the project on its 
website. Niraj Dattani explained that the fee was 5% on top of the project cost 
and would only be charged if the project was successful. The fee paid for 
Spacehive’s website, staff etc. and no project had not received funding 
because it hadn’t managed to get the additional money to pay for the fee. 
 

35. CYCLING IN THE BOROUGH - 2017 UPDATE  
 
Richard Duffill, Cycling Officer, explained that the Council had in October 
2015 adopted a cycling strategy. The report updated members on progress 
made in each area of the strategy. Key developments were: 

- The introduction of further 20mph zones which made cycling much 
safer and more comfortable. 

- Significant progress made towards build an upgraded cycle path along 
the A315, which would be designated as Cycle Superhighway 9. 

- An increased number of cycle training opportunities. 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

- A programme to install hundreds of new cycle parking spaces across 
the borough, based on resident suggestions. 

- Significant progress on the East Acton to Kensington Quietway, 
construction of which was expected to start in the near future. 

- Plans to develop new Quietways from Putney Bridge to Hammersmith 
Bridge and from Shepherds Bush Green to Hammersmith Broadway. 
There would also be a new Quietway from Twickenham to 
Hammersmith which, whilst mostly in other boroughs, would be of 
significant benefit to residents. 

 
A resident asked whether the new cycle path on the A315 would be bi-
directional as King Street was one way from the Gyratory to Bridge Avenue. 
Richard Duffill said that it would be bi-directional and would not use Beadon 
or Glenthorne Roads. It was intended that the existing road layout on King 
Street would not be changed too much with wasted space being used to 
make room for the cycle path. Designs were still to be drawn up and there 
would be a full consultation on the proposals, probably starting in the 
Summer. A resident asked what the likely capacity and usage rate of Cycle 
Superhighway 9 would be. Richard Duffill said that because of poor 
connections and facilities the route was currently very lightly used. The new 
path would be between 3-4 metres wide and that would attract many more 
cyclists, although it was hard to put a figure to what the usage would be. The 
theoretical capacity of the route would be around 1,000 bicycles per hour in 
each direction. 
 
A resident felt that it would be unsafe to have a bi-directional cycle path on 
the A315 as there were lots of side roads from which vehicles would have to 
emerge, crossing the cycle path and not necessarily looking both ways. 
Richard Duffill explained that the route had been designed to cross as few 
side roads as possible; Transport for London’s design team would be 
reviewing the plans and checking that they were safe. 
 
A resident noted that the route along the A315 was initially designated as a 
Quietway and asked why it was now a Cycle Superhighway; she was 
concerned that a Cycle Superhighway would be less accessible to those who 
were less confident on their bicycles. Richard Duffill explained that the initially 
planned route along the A315 had been reviewed by TfL and they had 
decided that it met Cycle Superhighway design standards. By designating the 
route as a Cycle Superhighway, more funding would be available to make the 
route even safer. Mr Duffill explained that the perception of a Cycle 
Superhighway as being intimidating for less confident cyclists was 
unwarranted in almost all instances, with any exceptions being in central 
London at peak times; he did not expect the route along the A315 to be 
difficult for any cyclist to use.  
 
A resident asked whether it was realistic to increase the number of journeys 
made by bicycle to 8% of all journeys by 2031. Richard Duffill said that at the 
moment around 530,000 trips were made by bike in the borough each year. 
This was about 5% of all journeys and he felt the additional 3% was an 
ambitious but achievable target.  
 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

A resident asked whether there were any plans to promote electric bicycles in 
the borough. Richard Duffill noted that these were very popular in some parts 
of Europe, and indeed in hilly areas in the UK, however, their promotion was 
not a priority for the council as journeys in the borough could be made by the 
vast majority of people on an ordinary bike. He understood that TfL were 
considering adding electric bicycles to the Santander Cycles scheme, 
although this project was in its very early stages.  
 
A resident asked where the Parklet would be in the Brackenbury area. 
Richard Duffill said that it would probably be near to the Deli, subject to the 
results of a consultation which was about to be launched. Councillor Hamilton 
said that he would have welcomed the opportunity to consider the 
consultation on the parklet at the PAC before it was launched; it was 
explained that the scheme was of local importance only and that such 
schemes would not usually be brought to a PAC. 
 
A resident said that secure cycle storage was important for those living in 
flats. She asked whether she could dare to hope that there would be a bike 
hangar in every street in the borough. Richard Duffill said that data on where 
bike hangars were needed was being collated and some would be installed 
within a month or two. He didn’t think that there would be one in every street, 
but he hoped that a significant number could be installed. Councillor Harcourt 
noted that the introduction of bike hangars often meant the loss of a parking 
bay, which residents needed to be consulted about. A resident asked whether 
surplus space at Santander Docking Stations could be used to accommodate 
bike hangars. Richard Duffill replied that it could, however, demand was often 
from areas where there was little off street space. All of the borough’s docking 
stations were fairly well used and it would damage the usability of the system 
if docking stations were removed.  
 
A resident said that changes to Goldhawk Road had made it more difficult to 
use; she felt that it would discourage people from cycling. Another resident 
said that getting to Westfield from the South was difficult, and asked what 
plans existed for a route from Hammersmith to Shepherds Bush. Richard 
Duffill explained that a new Quietway from Hammersmith to Shepherds Bush 
was planned, and approaches to Westfield would be considered as part of 
that. 
 
John Griffiths, Chair of H&F Cyclists, asked whether the Twickenham to 
Hammersmith Quietway would travel over Hammersmith Bridge. Richard 
Duffill explained that it would not; the route was expected to join the A315 just 
to the East of Goldhawk Road having crossed the Thames further to the 
West. 
 
John Griffiths was concerned that the Westbound cycle lane on Du Cane 
Road was too narrow and close to other vehicles. Richard Duffill explained 
that the new Quietway would run to the North of Hammersmith Hospital, 
allowing those who were not comfortable using Du Cane Road a convenient 
alternative.  
 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

A resident was concerned that there was insufficient provision for cyclists 
along the New Kings Road; the route was heavily used by commuting cyclists 
and the lack of space made it an intimidating route for less confident riders. 
Richard Duffill said that the issue was one he was aware of, although it would 
not be an easy one to resolve. There were plans to improve facilities in 2017-
18 although these were still in the very early stages of planning.  
 
Councillor Cassidy asked whether further Santander docking stations could 
be installed in the borough. Richard Duffill explained that more docking 
stations were planned for significant developments such as Old Oak. 
 
Councillor Steve Hamilton asked why the WestTrans Freight Strategy had 
been appended to the report. Richard Duffill explained that the strategy had 
been developed during the year, and aimed to reduce the number of lorries 
using the borough’s roads, thereby making them safer for cyclists 
 
A resident asked whether there were plans to improve cycling facilities on 
Fulham Broadway as part of the Chelsea FC stadium redevelopment. Richard 
Duffill said that it was hoped that there would be many improvements but that 
it was still too early to say what this could mean for Fulham Broadway.  
 
A resident asked whether there were still plans for a ‘flyunder’ in 
Hammersmith. Richard Duffill explained that a masterplan for Hammersmith 
Town Centre was currently being drafted as a Supplementary Planning 
Document; residents were helping to suggest what changes were needed and 
he understood that a flyunder proposal would be included in the document. 
 

36. BETTER JUNCTIONS - FINAL CONSULTATION REPORT FROM 
TRANSPORT FOR LONDON  
 
Ed Boatman, Transport for London, explained that 780 responses had been 
received to the recent consultations on the Better Junctions scheme at 
Hammersmith Gyratory. 73 percent of respondents either supported or 
partially supported the proposals. Transport for London therefore proposed to 
proceed with the scheme which had been consulted on with some 
amendments in response to the views of residents. The pedestrian crossing 
from Shepherds Bush Road to the Broadway Centre would now be retained. 
 
A resident noted that there was a difference between the proportion of people 
who TfL had claimed supported the scheme and the proportion who had 
made positive comments. Mahmood Siddiqi explained that the 73% figure 
was based on respondents ticking a box to indicate their support, whereas the 
figures the resident was referring to had only considered the comments which 
had been made. Many of those who had left negative comments might well 
have criticised a particular aspect of the scheme, but still selected the Support 
or Partially Support tick box. A resident explained that they had indeed been 
very critical of the removal of the crossing from Shepherds Bush Road to the 
Broadway Centre, but had selected the Partially Support tick box as they 
were otherwise in favour of the scheme.  
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

A resident said that the phasing of traffic lights needed to be planned carefully 
to ensure that cyclists were not delayed excessively. Ed Boatman said that it 
was intended that progression around the gyratory would be good. A resident 
was concerned that pedestrians might walk into cycle lanes. Ed Boatman 
explained that marshals would be employed when the new layout was 
introduced; this would encourage all users to be responsible. 
 
A resident felt too few people had responded to the consultation for it to be 
useful. Ed Boatman explained that the consultation had been heavily 
publicised, including a second consultation phase when errors in the first 
consultation were pointed out to Transport for London by Hammersmith and 
Fulham Council. He believed that everybody who might have wanted to 
respond had been given the opportunity to do so; the results were therefore 
an accurate portrayal of those who felt strongly enough to answer the 
consultation. If residents had concerns about the consultation process which 
they had not already raised they could contact transport for London via their 
website www.tfl.gov.uk/help-and-contact or on 0343 222 1234. 
 
A resident was concerned that there would be a significant traffic impact on 
smaller roads around the gyratory. Councillor Dewhirst shared these 
concerns noting that in their previous report there had been suggestion of 
delays to the south of the gyratory. Ed Boatman explained that modelling had 
been done which suggested that there would be some minor delay, but that 
there were not expected to be delays which would have a significant impact 
on the local road network. Unfortunately Mr Boatman did not have the figures 
with him to illustrate this although he explained that had there been 
unacceptable increases in journey times the scheme would not have been 
progressed. A resident asked that the modelling data for the scheme be 
shared with him; Ed Boatman explained that this was available on the TfL 
Consultation website (https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/hammersmith-
gyratory-1/). The Chair suggested that if residents had specific concerns they 
could contact Transport for London after the meeting.  
 
Councillor Harcourt explained that Hammersmith Grove had been expected to 
face some delays as a result of the scheme. The Leader of the Council and 
Mahmood Siddiqi had therefore worked with residents to create a scheme to 
mitigate the impact of this. Mahmood Siddiqi explained that as a result of 
conversations with residents the proposed bus lane on Beadon Road would 
not be installed; this would reduce the impact of the scheme. A resident 
asked that details of the scheme on Hammersmith Grove be made available 
on the council’s website. Mr Siddiqi added that modelling was not an exact 
science, but did identify where there were likely to be significant impacts; if 
the Gyratory scheme did have unexpected consequences the Council, 
Transport for London and residents could work together to mitigate these. 
 
A resident said that they felt that the scheme’s benefits for sustainable 
transport users outweighed any delays to drivers; she said that the delays 
might even increase the number of people cycling as they chose not to queue 
in traffic. The resident also suggested that if there were concerns that local 
roads might be used as ‘rat runs’ they could have access to them restricted. 
Another resident said that they felt that there was a need to reduce the 

Page 6

http://www.tfl.gov.uk/help-and-contact
https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/hammersmith-gyratory-1/
https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/hammersmith-gyratory-1/


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

number of motor vehicles on the roads and give better facilities to other 
modes of transport in order to create a less congested, cleaner future. 
 
A resident asked whether Transport for London’s modelling looked at people 
per hour or at vehicles, as they suspected the improvements might lead to 
more people being able to cross the gyratory. Ed Boatman explained that 
modelling was mostly based on motor vehicles, cyclists being quite hard to 
model, however, he agreed that the works would certainly lead to more 
cyclists using the gyratory.  
 
Councillor Hamilton said that he remained concerned that only those cycling 
around the gyratory would have a faster journey whilst buses, cars and 
pedestrians would all be delayed to achieve this. Ed Boatman explained that 
since the reintroduction of the pedestrian crossing from Shepherds Bush 
Road to the Broadway Centre pedestrians would now no longer be delayed. 
Councillor Hamilton suggested that it would be useful if Transport for London 
could provide updated figures on delays following the change to the design.  
 
John Griffiths explained that he had submitted a new proposed layout for 
Beadon Road. Ed Boatman explained that this had been forwarded to him 
and that its potential impacts would be considered.  
 
A resident asked that the relationship between Transport for London and 
Hammersmith and Fulham Council be clarified. Mahmood Siddiqi explained 
that the Mayor of London drew up the Mayor’s Transport Plan. Councils 
across London then bid for money to improve their boroughs and meet the 
goals of this plan through their own Local Implementation Plans. He added 
that Hammersmith and Fulham preferred to do all improvement work on roads 
in the borough and so were made a contractor by Transport for London for 
large schemes they might have built themselves in other boroughs. 
 
A resident suggested that the plans ought to be delayed in order to take into 
account the Hammersmith Town Centre Supplementary Planning Document. 
Councillor Dewhirst agreed that postponing the scheme’s implementation 
would be a good idea. Councillor Cassidy said that a good reason for inaction 
could always be found; he felt that the plans ought to be pressed ahead with 
so as to bring the benefits of the scheme to residents as soon as possible.  
 
Councillor Hamilton asked why the taxi rank on Blacks Road had been 
relocated as this caused difficulties for shops trying to load and unload 
delivery vehicles. Ed Boatman explained that it had been moved to allow the 
first taxi to see the rear of the main rank outside the Broadway centre. 
Councillor Harcourt also noted that residents had complained about the 
delivery vehicles. 
 
A resident suggested that underpasses could be used to allow pedestrians to 
cross the gyratory. Councillor Harcourt said that underpasses had previously 
been very unpopular as they needed lots of maintenance and attracted anti-
social behaviour; he did not think that they should be reinstated. 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

A resident asked what the next steps in the process would be. The Chair 
explained that officers would take residents comments on board, finalise the 
design, and then a report would be taken to the council’s Cabinet.  
 
At 9.05 the meeting adjourned for 15 minutes to allow those who were only 
interested in the cycling items to leave. 
 

37. UPDATE ON CEMETERIES  
 
Ullash Karia explained that the cemeteries service was successful, thanks 
largely to the hard work of officers and staff. New Cemetery Regulations had 
been drafted to replace the old ones which were quite outdated. Ian Ross 
said that the Council owned 4 cemeteries, two within the borough and two 
outside the borough. These contained enough space for around 10 years of 
burials. Councillors would need to consider options for additional space and 
changes to management of graves in the next few years. The service was 
delivered by Quadron idverde whilst expenditure and income were fairly even.  
 
Councillor Dewhirst asked whether headstones were still layed flat if they 
were considered to be unsafe. Ian Ross explained that if a headstone was 
found to be unsafe it would either be layed flat or supported with a stake and 
a band.  
 
Councillor Cassidy asked what the difference between a Standard and a 
Premium grave was. Ian Ross explained that standard graves were those in 
Mortlake and North Sheen Cemeteries whilst premium graves were those in 
Margravine and Fulham Cemeteries. 
 
Councillor Cassidy asked whether there was a friends group for Fulham 
cemetery. Ian Ross said that there was not, although officers would support 
one if there was sufficient interest.  
 
The chair asked whether there were any trends in income. Ian Ross 
explained that it had been expected that the number of cremation plots sold 
would rise but in fact they had remained relatively static.  
 
It was clarified that the costs of a pauper’s grave were borne by Adult Social 
Care. 
 
Comments on the draft cemeteries regulations were invited by email after the 
meeting. 
 

38. UPDATE ON REGISTRATION SERVICES  
 
Dave Page explained that a new Superintendent Registrar had been 
appointed around 18 months ago. The service had been restructured to make 
it more efficient and resident focussed. A new charging structure had also 
been introduced. Weddings were now offered in the Marble Gallery, whilst 
Birth Registration was offered at the Masbro Children’s Centre. Options to 
offer a complete wedding package were being explored. Dave Page 
explained that income for the service had increased significantly in most 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

areas, but the Nationality Checking Service, which had been very successful 
until a few years ago, had been affected by changes at the Home Office. 
Income would be affected when the Town Hall was being refurbished and so 
officers were looking to licence other venues.  
 
The Chair asked whether the service sought feedback from residents. Dave 
Page said that it did and agreed to provide more information on this outside of 
the meeting. 
 
Councillor Cassidy asked what links the service had with the Senior Coroner 
for West London. Dave Page explained that a properly functioning Coroners 
Court was important to the Registration Service. All Registration Services 
across West London had been experiencing difficulties with the Coroner’s 
Court, and lots of work had been done to improve its service. The Police and 
JCIO continued to investigate the Senior Coroner. 
 

39. WORK PROGRAMME AND DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The committee’s work programme was noted. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.40 pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Ainsley Gilbert 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 

RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
24 April 2017 

 

 

SCHOOL TRAVEL PLANS 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services – Councillor Wesley Harcourt  

 

Open Report 
 

Classification – For Information 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director:  
Mahmood Siddiqi, Director for Transport and Highways 
 

Report Author:  
Richard Evans, School Travel Adviser 
 

Contact Details: 
020 8753 3344 
stp@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The School Travel Adviser (STA) works with all 78 schools in the borough, in 

both state and independent sectors, to help them produce their School Travel 
Plans (STP). 
 

1.2. An STP is a document produced by a school that promotes safe and 
sustainable travel to and from school. It encourages active travel (walking 
cycling and scooting) and aims to reduce the number of car journeys to and 
from schools.  

 
1.3. The STA post is funded by Transport for London. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1. That the committee review this report and comment on its contents.  

 
2.2. That the committee reconsider the 70% active travel to school LIP2 target by 

2030 (baseline 42% in 2004/5; currently 48%). 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4

mailto:stp@lbhf.gov.uk


 

 

2.3. That the committee consider setting a new target for car travel to school 
(baseline 20%; currently 13%). 
 

2.4. That the committee consider sanctioning more radical actions to deter car use 
on the school run, for example trialling temporary CCTV to enforce parking 
regulations outside schools, and road closures as recently piloted successfully 
by L.B. Camden (see appendix 5). 

 
3. SCHOOL TRAVEL PLANS 

 
3.1. A School Travel Plan (STP) involves an agreed series of practical steps 

designed to reduce car use on the school run, increase walking, cycling and 
the use of public transport, and to improve safety on the school journey.  

 
3.2. This is achieved through a proactive approach taken by the school in 

partnership with teachers, pupils, governors, parents and council officers. 
 

3.3. In developing a STP, schools are required to survey and analyse pupil and 
staff travel habits and devise realistic targets for modal change through 
practical initiatives.  
 

3.4. Practical and financial assistance is available to schools to help with writing 
and updating their plans. 
 

3.5. TfL has developed software and a website at https://stars.tfl.gov.uk/ for all 
London STAs and schools to use to develop and maintain their STPs. This 
website also rewards schools with an accreditation level at bronze, silver or 
gold, and the deadline is June every year.  
 
 

3.6. In June 2016 39 H&F schools achieved bronze or higher; 20 are recorded as 
“engaged” which means they did travel surveys but did not update the STP to 
the bronze level; and 19 did not engage. 
 

3.7. The STP consists of five key constituent parts: 

 Basic information page, showing current accreditation level, progress 
towards next accreditation level, links to its previous STPs, school details 
such as opening and teaching hours, catchment area information 
illustrating how close most pupils live to their schools, type and quantity of 
cycle and scooter parking, and bus routes which serve the school; 

 Results from all staff and pupil travel surveys at the school since its first 
travel plan; 

 List of issues and concerns raised by the school which might constitute 
barriers to higher levels of walking and cycling to school, eg perception of 
unsafe roads for cycling, lack of scooter/cycle parking; 

 Targets – we encourage all schools to set targets to cut car use and 
increase active travel; 

 Activities and stories – an action plan and record of all activities planned 
and undertaken by the school in pursuit of its targets. 

Page 11

https://stars.tfl.gov.uk/


 

 

4. STP BENEFITS 
 

4.1. The main beneficiaries of the travel plan are the pupils themselves. We urge 
schools to promote active travel above all other modes for the sake of the 
children’s health, well-being, and fitness. 
 

4.2. One in three British 11-year-olds is overweight or obese. This is as much due 
to their increasingly inactive sedentary lifestyles as it is their diet. 
 

4.3. A 2015 study found that half of seven-year-olds are not achieving the 
recommended minimum of 60 minutes of physical activity per day.  
 

4.4. 70% of overweight/obese children will become overweight/obese adults 
 

4.5. The Chief Medical Officer for England said in 2010 that “if a medication 
existed which had a similar effect to physical activity it would be regarded as a 
‘wonder drug’ or miracle cure”. 
 

4.6. Improved attendance and better academic performance have also been linked 
with active travel to school. 
 

4.7. Benefits to wider society of fewer children travelling to school by car include, 
for example, lower congestion levels, safer roads, and improved air quality. 
 

4.8. One of the most popular benefits, available only to schools with up-to-date 
travel plans, is the small grants scheme (currently up to £1,500) to fund new 
capital expenditure within the school grounds that will promote and facilitate 
active travel to school, for example, new cycle and scooter parking, 
pedestrian shelters, new access at school perimeter, new or improved paths 
for pedestrians and/or cyclists in school grounds, drainage, improved lighting 
in school grounds, CCTV.  
 

4.9. In 2015/16 some £26,000 of such grants were awarded to schools to assist 
with the purchase of improvements to lighting, canopies, extra cycle and 
scooter parking, over 200 balance bikes at 25 schools to help teach cycling, 
new school gates at Randolph Beresford and Lena Gardens, pool bikes for a 
number of schools, removal of car parking spaces at Normand Croft, 
replacement of keep clear zig-zag parking warning signs to various schools, 
and 33 Plantlocks to 17 schools. 
 

4.10. Other rewards directly linked with the STP include fully funded cycle training 
courses for year 5/6 pupils; an Urban Studies local transport project for ten 
year 5 classes per year; access to the TfL Youth Travel Ambassador Scheme; 
free resources to promote walking, eg Walk once a Week (WoW) badges; the 
Bike-It scheme which works intensively with six schools per year to help 
schools develop a cycling culture; accredited recognition within the school, the 
local community and across London for travel related achievements; and 
equipping young people with valuable life skills to travel actively, 
independently, safely and responsibly. 
 

Page 12



 

 

4.11. Issues and concerns such as unsafe road crossings are brought to the 
attention of our Highways Engineers and, where appropriate, engineering 
measures are implemented. Recent examples include the installation of zig-
zag School Keep Clear markings at Miles Coverdale School and the removal 
of a parking bay on the corner of Lysia Street to facilitate a safer road 
crossing to Queens Manor School.  
 

4.12. Funding for all the above comes through the LIP2, i.e. from TfL. 
 
5. LIP2 OBJECTIVES AND TARGETS 

 
5.1. LIP2 is shorthand for the council’s Local Implementation Plan 2, our 2011-

2031 Transport Plan. 
 

5.2. LIP2 objectives include efficient roads, improved air quality and safer roads. 
STPs are delivering lower car use at schools across the borough, and thereby 
contributing to all three of these objectives. 
 

5.3. Our LIP2 set a target of 70% active travel (walk/cycle/scooter) to school by 
2030/31. This was set against a 2004/5 baseline of 42%.  
 

5.4. The most recent surveys at 60 schools across the borough in 2015/16 
(representing a total of 18,713 pupils) show active travel has risen to 48%.  
 

5.5. The committee is invited to consider whether the 70% active travel target 
should be revised. 
 

5.6. Travel to school by car has fallen from 20% in 2004/5 to 13% in 2015/16, 
representing 1,300 fewer pupils travelling to school by car across the 
borough. 
 

5.7. The committee is invited to consider whether the council should set a car use 
target. 

 
6. 2014 MANIFESTO AND AIR QUALITY 
 
6.1. STPs support many of the council’s headline manifesto objectives, for 

example: safer residential streets; cleaner air; encouraging more and safer 
cycling; more safe space for cycling in the borough to ensure greater safety 
for children, pedestrians and cyclists; and helping children to be healthy. 
 

6.2. The H&F manifesto recognised that “air pollution in parts of the borough 
already exceeds European limits adding to the health risk for residents and 
damaging our planet”. 
 

6.3. St Paul’s Primary School in Hammersmith town centre has been named in the 
Sunday Times and the Evening Standard revealing that children at seven 
primary schools in and around London are “breathing in some of the filthiest 
air in the country” (appendix 4). 

 

Page 13



 

 

7. CHALLENGES AND ISSUES 
 

7.1. Most schools in the borough, currently 65, listed at appendix 1, engage with 
the programme and maintain an up-to-date travel plan, annually conducting 
staff and pupil travel surveys, and updating targets and an action plan. These 
schools all have access to the various benefits listed above. 
 

7.2. The four schools listed at appendix 2 have lapsed travel plans, but this is 
likely to be temporary – they have a reasonable track record over recent years 
and are expected to update their STPs in time for the June TfL accreditation 
deadline. 
 

7.3. Nine schools, listed at appendix 3, are currently not co-operating at all, 
persistently ignoring repeated requests from the school travel adviser to 
undertake their annual surveys and subsequently update the STP. 
 

7.4. Non-co-operating schools do not have access to the various benefits listed 
above. The withdrawal of benefits is sometimes sufficient to re-engage such a 
school. There is no other sanction or means of enforcement that can be 
applied. 
 

7.5. Some new schools in the borough, for example the West London Free School 
(WLFS), have been conditioned by our planners to require their parents to 
sign no car agreements, i.e. the parents must pledge not to drive their children 
to school. However, these agreements are ineffective and unenforceable. For 
example, the most recent WLFS survey, in January 2017, shows that 23% of 
pupils are travelling to school by car. 
 

7.6. To achieve further significant progress on modal shift away from car use on 
the school run, more radical measures are likely to be necessary.  
 

7.7. We therefore seek the PAC’s views on trials of new generation CCTV 
cameras to enforce parking regulations on School Keep Clear markings, and 
to pilot temporary road closures similar to recent successful trials in L.B. 
Camden, subject to clear support from the schools for these measures. (see 
appendix 5). 

 
8. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1. All schools in the borough, including SEN schools, are invited and expected 

on an equal footing to develop and maintain their STPs, and all have access 
to the same benefits. 
 

8.2. Jack Tizard School (for pupils aged 3 to 19 years with a range of severe 
learning difficulties) has achieved a gold accredited STP, having set up an 
innovative all-ability cycling club and achieved beacon status as an example 
of best practice in London. 
 
Implications completed by Richard Evans, School Travel Adviser, x 3344 
 

Page 14



 

 

9. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 
 

9.1. Businesses will benefit from STPs meeting their modal targets, as set out in 
the LIP2. Cutting car use on the school run will help to deliver a safer and 
more efficient transport network, facilitating access of both staff and 
customers to the wide range of businesses in all areas of the borough. 
 

9.2. An efficient and effective road network will allow business to deliver goods 
and services to customers across the borough and the wider west London 
sub-region.  
 

9.3. Higher levels of active travel to school will improve the health of children, who 
will be more likely to grow into active healthy adults and workers in the local 
economy, taking less time off work for reasons of poor health. 
 
Implications completed by Nicholas Ruxton-Boyle, Chief Transport Planner, x 
3069 

 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

None 
 

11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 - List of schools with current STP. 
Appendix 2 - List of lapsed schools. 
Appendix 3 - List of non-co-operating schools. 
Appendix 4 - Air quality article in Evening Standard naming St Paul’s Primary School 
in Hammersmith (http://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/london-primary-schools-
breathing-in-filthiest-air-in-the-country-a3087756.html). 
Appendix 5 – Information about the daily closure to motors of Macklin Street for the 
pupils of St Joseph’s Primary School 
  -  L.B. Camden webpage (http://www.camden.gov.uk/healthyschoolstreets)  
  -  BBC News webpage (http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-london-38894174). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

http://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/london-primary-schools-breathing-in-filthiest-air-in-the-country-a3087756.html
http://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/london-primary-schools-breathing-in-filthiest-air-in-the-country-a3087756.html
http://www.camden.gov.uk/healthyschoolstreets
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-london-38894174


 

 

Appendix 1  
Schools with up-to-date STPs 
These schools have all undertaken their travel surveys within the last 18 months. 

 1. Addison 
2. Al Muntada Islamic School 
3. All Saints 
4. Ark Bentworth 
5. Ark Conway Primary Academy 
6. Avonmore 
7. Bayonne Nursery School 
8. Brackenbury 
9. Bridge Academy 
10. Burlington Danes 
11. Burlington Danes Primary 
12. Bute House Prep Girls 
13. Cambridge 
14. Ecole Française Jacques 

Prevert  
15. Ecole Marie d’Orliac 
16. Flora Gardens 
17. Fulham Cross 
18. Fulham Prep Lower School  
19. Fulham Prep School  
20. Fulham Primary 
21. Godolphin & Latymer School  
22. Good Shepherd 
23. Greenside 
24. Holy Cross 
25. Jack Tizard 
26. James Lee Nursery School 
27. John Betts 
28. Kenmont 
29. Kensington Prep School for girls  
30. Lady Margaret’s 
31. Langford 
32. Larmenier & Sacred Heart  
33. Latymer Prep School  
34. Latymer Upper School  

35. Lena Gardens 
36. London Oratory 
37. Melcombe 
38. Miles Coverdale 
39. Moat School for dyslexics  
40. Normand Croft 
41. Old Oak 
42. Parayhouse School 
43. Parsons Green Prep 
44. Queens Manor 
45. Queensmill 
46. Randolph Beresford EYC 
47. Sacred Heart High 
48. Saint John XXIII (was Pope 

John) 
49. Sir John Lillie 
50. St Augustine’s 
51. St Johns 
52. St Mary's 
53. St Pauls  
54. St Pauls girls  
55. St Peters 
56. St Stephens 
57. St Thomas of Canterbury 
58. Sulivan 
59. Thomas's London Day School  
60. Vanessa Nursery 
61. Wendell Park 
62. West London Free School 

primary 
63. West London Free School 

secondary 
64. Woodlane 
65. Wormholt Park 

  

Page 16



 

 

Appendix 2 
Schools with lapsed STP 
We anticipate these schools undertaking their travel surveys soon and 
then updating their travel plans in time to meet the June accreditation 
2017 deadline. 

1. Ark Swift (formerly Canberra) 

2. Fulham Boys Free School 

3. Phoenix 

4. St James 

 

Appendix 3 
Schools not engaging 
These schools have a particularly poor record, having persistently over the years failed to co-
operate. 

1. Chelsea Independent College 

2. Fulham College Boys 

3. Hammersmith Academy 

4. Hurlingham & Chelsea 

5. Ravenscourt Park Prep School 

6. Sinclair House 

7. Thomas’s Academy (formerly New Kings) 

8. William Morris 6th Form 

9. Young Dancers Academy 

 
 

Page 17



http://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/london-primary-schools-

breathing-in-filthiest-air-in-the-country-a3087756.html  

Children at seven primary schools in and around London are breathing 

in some of the filthiest air in the country, a study has revealed. 

Schools in Holborn, Hammersmith, Hounslow and Slough are among the 10 

most polluted in the country, with more than 150 tons of nitrogen dioxide 

pumped out annually in the square kilometre surrounding each. 

The Sunday Times reports up to 3,000 schools are in areas where annual 

NO2 emissions top 25 tons per square kilometre, which is six times the 

national average. 

The newspaper crunched government data released by the Department for 

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs to create the league. 

Although Moat Community College in Leicester tops the list, the next seven 

positions are all occupied by schools in or near the capital. 

More than 200 tons of NO2 are released into the air near Pippins School in 

Slough, which is in the shadow of Heathrow airport and a motorway 

junction. 

St Paul’s C of E Primary School and Larmenier and Sacred Heart RC 

Primary School in Hammersmith are next, followed by St Joseph’s RC 

Primary School in Holborn, St Clement Danes C of E Primary School and St 

George the Martyr C of E Primary School, all within the same hotspot. 

Cranford Primary School in Hounslow is just behind with 164 tons of NO2 

per square kilometre per year. 

Air quality expert Frank Kelly, professor of environmental health at King’s 

College, told the paper: “It is clear that children attending very many schools 

are breathing polluted air for all the years they are a pupil.” 

Page 18

http://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/london-primary-schools-breathing-in-filthiest-air-in-the-country-a3087756.html
http://www.standard.co.uk/news/london/london-primary-schools-breathing-in-filthiest-air-in-the-country-a3087756.html


Defra appeared to lay responsibility for dealing with air quality at the door of 

headteachers. 

“Schools must have a health-and-safety policy for which the head teacher is 

responsible,” the department told The Sunday Times. 

St Joseph’s RC Primary School and the two around it are in the centre of 

TfL’s ultra-low emission zone, set to impose new lower emissions limits for 

vehicles in and around the City from 2020. 

But the other London schools fall outside it. 

Cllr Wesley Harcourt, Hammersmith and Fulham's environment chief, said: 

"It is critical that air quality improves in Hammersmith and Fulham, 

particularly around schools. 

"We have set up a resident-led commission that is proposing local solutions, 

but we urgently need action from the Mayor and the government. We have 

some of London's busiest roads and we're under the heavily-polluting 

Heathrow flight path. We're pushing the Mayor to replace Hammersmith 

Flyover with a tunnel and we're fighting the government all the way on plans 

to expand Heathrow, both of which are critical decisions for air quality." 

Camden Council has been contacted for comment. 

 

Page 19



4/6/2017 Camden Council: Healthy School Streets

http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/transportandstreets/trafficmanagement/roadsafetyincamden/roadsafetyforchildren/healthyschoolstreets/ 1/2

(/bsl)

 (/ccm/navigation/)  /  Transport and streets (/redirect/?oid=Categoryid18944)

/  Road safety (/redirect/?oid=Categoryid216093)  /  School travel and child road safety (/redirect/?oid=Categoryid359018)

camden.gov.uk uses cookies to make the site simpler.
Find out more about cookies. (/cookies)

(/ccm/navigation)



Transport and streets

Healthy School Streets
Many schools suffer with parking, congestion and road danger issues immediately outside their school,
making walking and cycling less attractive travel options, which can encourage school journeys to be
made by car.  This has a negative impact on children’s health and education, as well as causing
inconvenience and noise for local residents near schools.

What is a Healthy School Street?
Healthy School Streets is one of Camden Council’s initiatives to make the streets outside schools safer
at the start and end of the school day and to discourage driving to school.  We look at streets outside
interested schools that have medium to low levels of traffic, which could reasonably be closed to motor
traffic during these times without moving too much traffic elsewhere. 

How does it work?
The streets are closed by signage, and enforced by bollards raised and lowered by school staff.
Camden Council staff can help the school reduce the number of journeys driven to school by providing
pedestrian and cycle training, incentivising walking and cycling, and running events to raise awareness
and excitement about walking and cycling, thereby reducing the risk of parking problems being
displaced to other streets.

Progress 
Camden’s first pilot Healthy School Street is now live outside St Joseph’s School in Holborn and Covent
Garden.  Early indications are that there has been minimal impact on residents and businesses on the
street, a significant reduction in the number of trips driving to school, and parents report a significant
improvement in how safe they feel the school street is.

For more information read our Healthy School Streets report (/ccm/cmsservice/stream/asset?
asset_id=3550939&) (PDF 1 MB) 

Log on / Register 

Page 20

http://www.camden.gov.uk/bsl
http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/navigation/
http://www.camden.gov.uk/redirect/?oid=Category-id-18944
http://www.camden.gov.uk/redirect/?oid=Category-id-216093
http://www.camden.gov.uk/redirect/?oid=Category-id-359018
http://www.camden.gov.uk/cookies
http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/navigation
http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/cms-service/stream/asset?asset_id=3550939&


4/6/2017 Camden Council: Healthy School Streets

http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/transportandstreets/trafficmanagement/roadsafetyincamden/roadsafetyforchildren/healthyschoolstreets/ 2/2

Healthy School Streets

 

How can I suggest a Healthy School Street?
We are happy to consider other schools which would like to have a Healthy School Street.  Please
contact schooltravelplans@camden.gov.uk (mailto:schooltravelplans@camden.gov.uk) for more
information or to suggest a location.  

Alternatively, see our Play Streets (/ccm/navigation/education/servicesforchildrenparentsand
schools/playstreets/) initiative. A Play Street is an event where a road is closed off to traffic for a few
hours on a regular basis in order to provide children with a safe place to play freely. 

Would you like to provide feedback?

Contact us (/contact)

Freedom of information (/foi)

 (https://twitter.com/camdentalking)  (https://www.youtube.com/user/CamdenCouncil)

 (https://www.facebook.com/LBCamden/)  (https://www.linkedin.com/company/londonborough

ofcamden)Disclaimer, privacy statement and cookies (/privacy)

Site map (/ccm/navigation/sitemap.jsp)

Copyright © 2016

Page 21

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ZZnotSJ_4bU
mailto:schooltravelplans@camden.gov.uk
http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/navigation/education/services-for-children--parents-and-schools/play-streets/
http://www.camden.gov.uk/contact
http://www.camden.gov.uk/foi
https://twitter.com/camdentalking
https://www.youtube.com/user/CamdenCouncil
https://www.facebook.com/LBCamden/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/london-borough-of-camden
http://www.camden.gov.uk/privacy
http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/navigation/sitemap.jsp


4/6/2017 Camden school closes road for rushhour dropoffs  BBC News

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/ukenglandlondon38894174 1/6

Camden school closes road for rushhour dropoffs

7 February 2017  London

A narrow road outside a central London school is being closed during rush hour to
protect children from traffic and pollution.

Bollards are put up either side of Macklin Street in Camden from between 08:3009:15 and
15:1516:00.

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School said the 800m (2,600ft) long road was too dangerous for
the school children.

The school said it had made the combination of "small children and really narrow pavements"
much safer.

Deputy head Nicola ScottPhillips said there had been a "really positive reaction" from everyone
to the pilot, which she hoped would become permanent.

The school, which has 300 pupils, said there had been about a 50% reduction in children arriving
by car.

St Joseph's Catholic Primary School in Covent Garden says the school run is now safer

Media playback is unsupported on your device

News Sport Weather iPlayer TV Radio

Page 22

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/england/london
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news
http://www.bbc.co.uk/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/sport/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/weather/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/iplayer/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/tv/
http://www.bbc.co.uk/radio/
http://search.bbc.co.uk/search
https://www.bbc.co.uk/session?ptrt=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174&userOrigin=news&context=news


4/6/2017 Camden school closes road for rushhour dropoffs  BBC News

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/ukenglandlondon38894174 2/6

Analysis, BBC London transport correspondent Tom Edwards:

What's happening here can be seen as part of a wider picture we're seeing in London where
space is being taken away from vehicles and given to people for cycling and walking.

It's called healthier streets and not everyone likes it.

But what often happens in central London often spreads to other towns and cities.

Parent Michelle ZiniLopes said she had been anxious walking her child to school in the past
because lorries got too close to the pavement.

"I've witnessed parents being clipped by large vans and lorries that shouldn't be coming down
this road anyway because they end up getting stuck," she said.

Page 23



4/6/2017 Camden school closes road for rushhour dropoffs  BBC News

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/ukenglandlondon38894174 3/6

Camden Council said it believed it was the first time in the country a road had been closed
during school rush hour.

Phil Jones from the council said: "Hopefully it'll spread. We've got a lot of problems in London
with pollution and car domination so this is one way we can tackle those problems."

In January, the school's head teacher had cosigned a letter to London's mayor Sadiq Khan,
who has made tackling air pollution a priority.

Related Topics

Pollution

Share this story About sharing

More on this story

'Filthy air' prompts 'very high' pollution alert for London
23 January 2017

Reality Check: Was pollution worse in London than Beijing?
1 February 2017

 London kids on high air pollution: 'Our eyes start stinging'
29 January 2017

'Toxic air audits' announced for London's 'most polluted schools'
24 January 2017

Related Internet links

St Josephs Catholic Primary School

Improving air quality  London City Hall

Camden Council

The BBC is not responsible for the content of external Internet sites

London

Page 24

mailto:?subject=Shared%20from%20BBC%20News&body=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174
http://www.facebook.com/dialog/feed?app_id=58567469885&redirect_uri=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174&link=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174%3FSThisFB&display=popup
fb-messenger://share?app_id=58567469885&redirect_uri=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174&link=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174%3FCMP%3Dshare_btn_me
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=BBC%20News%20-%20Camden%20school%20closes%20road%20for%20rush-hour%20drop-offs&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174
https://uk.pinterest.com/pin/create/bookmarklet/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174&description=The%20London%20primary%20school%20hopes%20to%20protect%20children%20from%20traffic%20and%20pollution.&title=Camden%20school%20closes%20road%20for%20rush-hour%20drop-offs&media=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fspecial%2F2015%2Fnewsspec_10857%2Fbbc_news_logo.png%3Fcb%3D1
whatsapp://send?text=BBC%20News%20%7C%20Camden%20school%20closes%20road%20for%20rush-hour%20drop-offs%20-%20http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174%3Focid%3Dwsnews.chat-apps.in-app-msg.whatsapp.trial.link1_.auin
https://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fnews%2Fuk-england-london-38894174&title=Camden%20school%20closes%20road%20for%20rush-hour%20drop-offs&summary=The%20London%20primary%20school%20hopes%20to%20protect%20children%20from%20traffic%20and%20pollution.&source=BBC
http://www.greenpeace.org.uk/blog/climate/londons-schools
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/environment/pollution-and-air-quality/improving-air-quality
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/topics/5ae1f167-989d-425a-9232-3de98c086575/pollution
http://www.bbc.co.uk/help/web/sharing.shtml
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-london-38716498
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-38829146
http://www.bbc.co.uk/newsround/38789471
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-london-38730441
http://www.stjosephs.camden.sch.uk/
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/environment/pollution-and-air-quality/improving-air-quality
https://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/navigation/;jsessionid=4CF949D635A817B0BD1171D505C74C6F
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/england/london


 

 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith & 

Fulham 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 
RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
24 April 2017 

 

 

 
THE FUTURE OF PARKING IN HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 
 

 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Resident’s and Environmental Services – 
Councillor Wesley Harcourt 
 

 
Open Report 
 

 
Classification - For Policy and Accountability Review and Comment 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

 
Accountable Director: Mahmood Siddiqi – Director of Transport and Highways 
 

 
Report Author: Richard Hearle, Parking 
Projects and Policy Manager 

 
Contact Details: 
020 8753 4651 
richard.hearle@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
  

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report provides a progress update on parking initiatives in the council and 
outlines the key parking priorities and projects to be developed during 
2017/18.   

1.2. The programme supports the council’s 2017/18 annual report that announced 
recently that parking permit prices have been frozen in the borough for the 
third year running and to help cut pollution we’ve opened 150 electric vehicle 
(EV) charging points and a green car club, with one-year free membership for 
residents. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

mailto:richard.hearle@lbhf.gov.uk


 

 

1.3. The Mayor of London’s draft Transport Strategy (MTS) will be published in 
early 2017 and finalised in early 2018, and it is expected that our parking 
priorities will provide a solid foundation to support the MTS when published.  

1.4. The key priorities for 2017/18 build on previous achievements, improving 
existing parking provision and supporting targets to improve local air quality 
by reducing vehicle CO2, NOx and PM emissions, and reducing congestion. 

1.5. A key deliverable will be to support the uptake of EV by completing the 
Source London EV charge network, develop on-street residential EV charge 
point infrastructure and introduce EV rapid charge points (EVRC) in the 
borough.  

1.6. Other significant priorities include the Bluecity car club, completing the pay-
by-phone network, improving parking controls to address event demand and 
investigating opportunities for improved service delivery including possible 
adoption of map base Traffic Management Orders (TMO). 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the committee review the report and comment on its contents. 

3. INTRODUCTION 

3.1. Parking priorities are providing an important contribution to the council’s strive 
to become the greenest London borough.  Our priorities concentrate on the 
council’s objectives and LIP2 for 2011-31. 

3.2. During 2016-17, the parking programme has developed several key projects 
embracing new technology and concepts.  A key aspect has been to address 
the concerns of air quality.  This has seen the first on-street EV charge points 
in the borough, the expansion of the car club network, and policy and 
procedure reviews to support improvements in air quality, such as introducing 
the greener vehicle discounts for residents of the borough. 

3.3. Smart Visitor Permits has provided residents with a visitor permit system like 
an Oyster card, providing a top-up balance facility which is activated by the 
resident either online or by phone when their visitor arrives.  It’s cheaper than 
the normal pay and display price and any limited stay-time for pay and display 
parking doesn’t apply. 

3.4. Moving forward in 2017/18 we will continue to explore and implement 
initiatives that will support the take up of electric vehicles including Bluecity – 
EV car club vehicles – rapid charging hubs and most importantly, on-street 
residential charging infrastructure.  

3.5. Continuing the programme of controlled parking zone (CPZ) and waiting and 
loading reviews we will maximise parking spaces whilst reducing street clutter 
to improve the borough’s streetscape, ensure there are fewer obstructions for 
pedestrians, and reduce ongoing operational and maintenance costs. 

3.6. Further schemes for 2017/18 include pay by phone parking, exploring the 
adoption of map based Traffic Management Orders and improvements to 
match-day/event parking management. 

3.7. This report provides an overview of the council’s parking priorities proposed 
for 2017/18 focusing on the key initiatives. 

Page 26



 

 

4. ELECTRIC VEHICLES 

4.1. A key deliverable for the council in 2017/18 is a number of initiatives to 
support the take up of EVs in the borough.  This comprises three key projects 
as follows: 

4.2. To complete the Source London EV charge point network by summer 2017, 
bringing the total number of charge points in the borough to an impressive 
160 in a total of 55 separate locations.  This will result in an EV charge point 
being provided within 400 metres of every residential property in the borough.  
A map of the on-street EV charge point network ins provided in Appendix 1. 

4.3. The council receives many requests from individual residents and community 
groups requesting EV charge points and so we will explore how this can be 
best be achieved, concentrating on on-street facilities. 

4.4. To unlock the full cost saving potential of electric vehicles they should ideally 
be charged at home but for most residents in the borough off-street parking is 
not available.  By providing on-street chare points specifically for residents will 
unlock this convenience and encourage the uptake of EV in the borough.  In 
recognition we have developed a web based questionnaire to streamline 
requests from residents for on-street EV charge points. 

4.5. As charging options for residents expand it will bring community benefits 
through improved air quality, reduced vehicle noise and lower carbon 
footprints.   

4.6. As part of this project grant funding will be sought from OLEV (Office for Low 
Emission Vehicles) and/or London’s Go Ultra Low Cities Scheme (GULCS). 

4.7. Finally, the council are also developing options for providing rapid EV 
charging infrastructure in the borough and currently two locations are being 
considered.  This technology can provide many benefits including the 
potential to provide up to 80% charge in less than half an hour, and will 
support EV taxi growth in London, particularly as from 2018 all newly licenced 
London taxis will zero emission capable. 

4.8. Any rapid charging infrastructure that is successfully implemented will be fully 
funded between TfL and the operators (suppliers) of the service.  Moreover, 
through this arrangement there will be an opportunity for the council to 
generate a modest income from the charge points introduced through lease 
agreements and operator profit share. 

  

Page 27



 

 

5. CAR CLUBS 

5.1. The council has teamed up with BluePoint London to be the first council in 
London to provide a new electric car club.  Called Bluecity it will provide a 
network of fully electric car club vehicles and officially launches at the end of 
this month - www.blue-city.co.uk.  

5.2. The launch will take place during a special ‘eco fair’ in Lyric Square on 
Wednesday 26 April.  The event will be a celebration of all the great 
environmental work done in the borough so far and showcase our green 
schemes. 

5.3. To encourage take up of the scheme a key announcement will be that 
residents will be offered one year’s membership free and 20 hours of driving, 
making it both accessible and affordable. 

5.4. Members will be able to reserve a vehicle 30-minutes in advance and use any 
of the Source London EV charge points in the borough and and any charging 
bay in the 16 London boroughs who are signed up to Source London. 

5.5. The Bluecity scheme expands the existing car club network operating in the 
borough.  We will continue to work closely with all car club operators actively 
considering new locations to expand the network further to improve air quality 
and reduce private car ownership. 

6. PAY BY PHONE 

6.1. This year will see completion of the pay by phone system in the borough. The 
council will benefit from the system through reduced administration and 
operational costs. 

6.2. Pay by phone will help ensure continued vibrancy of local town centres with 
key benefits including: 

 Users only required to register once for all future parking sessions 

 No need to find change for parking ticket machines 

 Simple, secure payment mechanism 

 Optional parking expiry reminders 

 The ability to extend parking without returning to the vehicle 

6.3. The system will also contribute to an improved parking user experience and 
complement the pay & display parking ticket machine (PDM) replacement 
program, due for completion this Autumn.  The new PDM will offer multiple 
payment opportunities and accommodate the new one-pound coin.  

7. REVIEW OF ON-STREET PARKING CONTROLS 

7.1. A map of all the controlled parking zones in the borough is provided in 
Appendix 2. 

Page 28

file:///C:/Users/Rb76/AppData/Local/InternetCache/Content.Outlook/RRAP25B4/www.blue-city.co.uk


 

 

7.2. The borough includes a number of significant attractors including Westfield 
(retail), and sports venues such as Queens Club for tennis, and football 
stadiums at Chelsea, Fulham and QPR.   

7.3. There is a regular programme to survey, monitor and review all parking zones 
in the borough.  However, particular emphasis is placed on areas where non-
residential parking demand is high and can be excessive at certain times.  A 
selection of studies to be developed during 2017/18 are discussed below. 

Match-day, Retail and Event Parking Management Schemes 

7.4. For Chelsea Football Club the council has recently approved a planning 
application for a new 60,000 capacity stadium.  Funding has been secured to 
review all CPZs south of the Talgarth Road and where it is appropriate, match 
day parking will be introduced.  

7.5. We will be consulting Zone T on options to introduce match-day parking 
restrictions similar to those which currently operate in the neighbouring Zones 
X and Y. This will follow a parking stress survey undertaken in March 2017 
which has shown there is increased parking stress on weekday evening and 
weekend match days at Craven Cottage. 

7.6. Monitoring the effects of parking around Shepherds Bush, particularly 
Westfield, Uxbridge Road and QPR’s football stadium will continue.  This may 
result in further proposals being developed for Zone G, J and JJ to improve 
the effectiveness of parking management measures in the area. 

7.7. We are working closely with the event organisers at the Queens Club and with 
local residents‘ associations to develop a parking management scheme that 
will effectively manage parking and traffic in the area during key events 
including Aegon tennis championship. 

Hurlingham Park 

7.8. A key delivery project for the council in 2017 is to provide pay & display/pay 
by phone only parking in Hurlingham Park.  This will include re-surfacing the 
access road into the park and minor improvements to the layout of the car 
park and new traffic calming measures. 

7.9. In late 2016 the Council carried out an online public consultation on proposals 
to introduce parking controls in Hurlingham Park and it was agreed that paid 
for parking will be introduced in the park under an 18 month experimental 
Traffic Management Order (TMO).  During this time the effectiveness of the 
measures will be monitored. 

  

Page 29



 

 

8. MAP BASED TRAFFIC ORDERS 

8.1. Taking advantage of existing IT systems the council will complete a 
preliminary investigation to consider the adoption of Map Based TMOs 
(MBTMO).   

8.2. Describing the geographical position of the parking restrictions using the 
traditional text format is open to interpretation and can be confusing.  Mapping 
systems can assist by showing the parking restrictions in visual format - users 
find a visual map based format easier to understand.  There are several 
potential advantages to be realised as follows: 

 Showing the traffic orders in map format rather than as many pages of 
written schedules makes them easier to prepare, use and manage. 

 Ambiguity with written descriptions, and discrepancies between the 
TMO schedule and the map are eliminated 

 The mapping can be shown on the Council website for use by the 
public, which can assist with understanding the restrictions and 
responding to queries quickly. 

 The potential to reduce administration, management and amendment 
costs. 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 

 

Appendix 1; Draft Map of EV Charge Point Network in H&F 

Appendix 2; Controlled Parking Zone Map of Hammersmith & Fulham 

  

Page 30



 

 

Appendix 1 – Draft Map of EV Charge Point Network in H&F 

 

Page 31



 

 

Appendix 2 - Controlled Parking Zone Map of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 

Page 32



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 

RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
24 APRIL 2017 

 

 

THE COMMERCIAL WASTE SERVICE  

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services, Councillor Wesley Harcourt 
 

Open Report 

Classification - For Policy and Accountability Review and Comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Director: Sue Harris, Director for Cleaner Greener Services 
 

Report Author: Georgio Tafla, 
Commercial Waste Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3021  
E-mail:georgio.tafla@rbkc.gov.uk  

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1.  LBHF Commercial Waste currently provides a waste and recycling collection 

service to over 2,200 businesses in the borough. The Council is not required 
to directly provide a commercial waste service, but it must arrange for the 
collection of commercial waste if requested (so this could be arranged through 
a licensed 3rd party). Waste is collected by the Council’s waste management 
and street cleansing contractor (Serco) and waste is disposed of at the 
Council’s waste transfer station in Wandsworth, managed by Western 
Riverside Waste Authority. Council officers manage the administration of the 
service. 

 
Providing this service to local businesses means that the Council is able to 
keep control of a large amount of waste appearing on the street. As this is 
chargeable service, this also generates a significant amount of external 
income for the Council, as set out in section 1.2. 

 
 
2.   FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

For 2016/17, the service is budgeted to deliver a net surplus of £373k before 
corporate overheads, and is budgeted at a net cost of £38k including 
corporate overheads. The most significant overheads are related to IT and 
office accommodation.  

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



The projected outturn for 2016/17 is that overall, the service will overspend by 
£8k compared to the budget, as set out in the table below: 

 

 
 

The most significant service costs are related to the collection and disposal of 
the waste. The collection of commercial waste bags and recycling bins and 
bags is a fixed charge set out in the Serco contract. The collection of 
commercial waste bins is a variable charge, so the council only pays for the 
actual number of bins emptied. 
 
It should be noted that the costs of waste disposal are estimated, due to 
commercial waste collections being undertaken at the same time as domestic 
paladin bin collections (so the waste goes into the same vehicle and is 
weighed as a single vehicle). It is estimated that 20% of all waste collected is 
from commercial waste, resulting on 20% of total disposal costs being 
recharged to commercial waste.  
 

The Commercial Waste service provides a collection and disposal service to 
both external customers and other council departments. Included in the 
206/17 external income forecast is £28k of debt write offs (relating to old year 
accounts), so the actual external income billed in 2016/17 is £2.864m. This 
represents an increase of £140k/5% compared to 2015/16 (£2.724m).  

 
 
Under Section 45 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, it states: It shall 
be the duty of each waste collection authority, if requested by the occupier of 
premises in its area to collect any commercial waste from the premises, to 
arrange for the collection of the wastes. This could be arranged through a 
licensed 3rd party  

 
Section 34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, states that commercial 
organisations are responsible for safely containing and legally disposing of all 
wastes produced from the business. This is known as commercial waste duty 
of care and applies to all businesses and as part of the legislation waste must 
be transported by a licensed waste carrier which can be a licenced local 
authority.  

Revised 

Budget 

2016/17

Forecast 

2016/17

Forecast 

Variance 

2016/17

£000 £000 £000

Employee Costs 290 331 41

Waste Collection 645 600 (45)

Waste Disposal 1,969 1,846 (122)

Other Expenditure 19 33 14

Total Expenditure 2,922 2,810 (112)

Income - External Customers (2,969) (2,836) 133

Income - Internal Customers (327) (339) (12)

Total Income (3,296) (3,175) 120

Total Cost / (Income) Before (373) (365) 8

Share of Corporte Overheads 412 412 0

Total Cost / (Income) After 38 46 8

Budget Heading

Page 34

https://www.gov.uk/managing-your-waste-an-overview/your-responsibilities
https://www.gov.uk/managing-your-waste-an-overview/your-responsibilities


 
3. BUSINESS ACTIVITY 2016/17  
 

Customer account maintenance and acquisition is managed by the Council’s 
Commercial Waste sales officers. These front line officers have designated 
sales areas across the borough in order to maintain a good understanding of 
commercial movement within their area (e.g. identifying businesses moving in 
and out of the borough to identify sales opportunities).  

 
Between April 2016 and February 2017, the service has acquired 178 new 
customers and has had 106 contracts cancelled (most of which have been 
due to business closure). All cancellations are investigated prior to sign off, 
and then revisited periodically, in particular if they have moved to a private 
contractor. Year to date the Council has gained a net 72 new customers and 
so is in a positive customer churn position. The annual financial value of this 
customer churn is set out in the table below: 

 
 Business Activity April 2016 – Feb 2017 
 

 

3. 
 

CH
AL
LE
NG
ES  

 
Private sector waste collectors have become extremely competitive in 
Hammersmith & Fulham. The Council’s service remains strong as a trusted, 
reliable business, with sales officers reassuring customers that they will 
provide a reliable, high quality local service. 

 
The main competitors that operate within the borough are: 

 Albion Waste  

 PHS 

 First Mile  

 Biffa 

 Veolia 
 

Why do we lose accounts to competitors?  
 

There are two main factors why we lose accounts to our competitors: 
 

 National/City contract – The larger waste collection companies can offer a 
nationwide agreement; this gives them an advantage in securing the larger 
contracts.  

 Other advantages that the small “one man and van” type of competitive 
service is flexibility. They can offer timed collections, collections within the 
store, may not restricted by some rules, and flexible invoicing.  

 

Quarter New Business Cancellations Amendments 
Net Change in 

Annual 
Income 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

April – June 2016 109 -38 £14 85 

July – Sept 2016 114 -86 0 28 

October – Dec 2016  46 -100,591 9 -46 

Jan – Feb 2017  24 -5,828 2 21 

Total  293 -231 25 88 

Page 35



National waste collection companies have an advantage over our service, as 
they offer a wide range of services, such as: 
  

 Roll on/Roll off compactors and containers 

 Baling Services  

 Confidential Waste  

 WEEEE collection / Hazardous waste e.g. fluorescent tubes 

 Builders Waste 

 Hazardous Waste 

 Animal-by-products 

 
4.  KEY ACCOUNTS  

 
The sales officers had been tasked in the last couple of years to target the key 
accounts in the borough in terms of potential revenue, which currently do not 
use any of our services. These are organisations that traditionally produce a 
higher revenue stream, including hotels, office blocks, pubs, restaurants and 
department stores.  

 
Below are some the key accounts that have been signed in the last couple of 
years: -  
 
The Dorsett Hotel  
Hammersmith Apollo  
Imperial College  
Harrods Offices  
River café 
Hand & Flower Pub 
William Morris Pub 
Hammersmith BID  
Ocubis  
 

5.  ENFORCEMENT  
 

The Street Scene Enforcement (SSE) team acts on intelligence about unpaid-
for waste, or over-production of waste. When visiting premises, they advise 
proprietors that they must have a Trade Waste Agreement to dispose of 
waste with a licensed waste carrier (assuming they produce waste), but 
businesses do not have to go with the Council’s collection service (through 
Serco) and can arrange this separately.  
 
There is currently a trial of night time enforcement taking place in the borough. 
In March 2016 two SSE officers were recruited to target unpaid-for 
commercial waste being placed on the highway. This is because Serco end 
up picking up unpaid-for commercial waste, and the Council pays for the 
disposal costs which the business producing the wastes should pay for. The 
officers are operating between the hours of 6pm to 1am, 5 days per week, 
normally Tuesday to Saturday, although these officers are flexible if they need 
to operate on other days.  

 

Page 36



A system has been put in place by the commercial waste team to capture all 
financial information such as new or increased contracts being signed due to 
the night time activity by SSE officers.  

 
6.  PRIVATE LAND CLEANSING SERVICE 
 

As part of the smarter budgeting exercise the commercial waste team 
identified a gap in the market to a provide a street sweeping service on private 
land. The council only provides a sweeping service to adopted streets, and 
the service includes both manual & mechanical sweeping, and a deep 
cleansing service. Owing to the fact the service is currently provided to 
adopted streets there are existing resources such as assets and employees 
that could be utilised to provide a commercial private land cleansing service.      

 
The service includes selling the street sweeping service, to both private 
residential land and commercial property.  

 
The service was started in January 2017 and, once established, it is hoped 
that the it would attract income levels of up to £5k per annum. This amount is 
being built in to the savings proposals for 17/18. 

 
 

 

Page 37



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Item Report Author(s) Comments 

28 June 2016 – Policing, Crime and ASB 
 
 

 

Environmental Health Annual Report 2015-16 

To receive the Environmental Health annual report. 

Ann Ramage 
 

Noise Nuisance Prevention and Busking 

To hear about, and comment upon, the services which prevent and 
tackle noise nuisance, and to consider the council’s approach to 
busking. 

Richard Buckley 
 

Strategic Assessment for Crime and ASB 2016/17 

The 2015/16 Assessment was brought to the PAC in November 
2015. The aim of this item is to allow Councillors to comment on and 
influence the priorities 

Claire Rai/Duncan 
Smith 

 

Policing / Community Safety 

To consider joint working between the Police and Council, the work 
of the council funded police officers and how the police involve 
residents in their work. 

Dave Page / Claire 
Rai 

 

CCTV / RIPA 

To consider how well the current network is working (particularly in 
assisting the police) and also to get an idea on what plans there are 
to expand the coverage. 

 

 

 

 

Janette Mullins / 
Andy Stocker 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 7



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 2 of 5 
 

21 September 2016 – Gang Violence and Greening the Borough 
 
 

 

Environmental Planning Requirements 

How is the Council ensuring maximum value for residents from large-
scale developments in the borough? How is the impact on the 
environment being mitigated? 

Matt Butler 
 

Ending Gang Violence and Exploitation Strategy  

What problems does Hammersmith and Fulham have with gangs and 
youth violence? How does the gangs and youth violence strategy aim 
to tackle these? How will we know if it has been successful? 

Claire Rai 
 

Air Quality Commission 

Draft Report for Public Comments 

Peter Smith 
 

16 November 2016 – Sport and Leisure 
 
 

 

Biodiversity in Hammersmith and Fulham 

To consider the council’s work to improve biodiversity, including work 
in parks and tackling air pollution. Also to consider how the council 
involves its residents in increasing biodiversity. 

Richard Buckley 
 

Sport and Leisure Strategy 

To consider the proposed new sport and leisure strategy, and ensure 
that it includes the best work done in other boroughs and reflects the 
aspirations of the borough’s residents and sports clubs. 

Dave Page / Jardine 
Finn 

 

Sports Grounds Safety Report 

To understand the work of Environmental Health officers in ensuring 
that sports grounds are safe for spectators. 

Ann Ramage 
 

P
age 39



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 3 of 5 
 

30 January 2017 – Waste and the Council’s Budget 
 
 

 

Future Waste and Street Cleansing Services – Involving the 
Citizen  

To receive an update on the work which has been done to improve 
the Council’s Waste and Street Cleansing Services. 

Sue Harris / Kathy 
May 

 

Draft Budget 

To review the 2016/17 budget for the departments. Senior officers 
are to discuss the major areas of challenge for their services and 
highlight areas for scrutiny.  

Mark Jones / Senior 
Officers 

 

 

1 March 2017 –  Spacehive, Hammersmith Gyratory, Cycling, 
Cemeteries and Registrars  

 
 

 

Spacehive 

To hear about the work the council is doing with Spacehive. 

Sarah Fox / 
Spacehive 

 

Hammersmith Gyratory Better Junctions Scheme 

To consider the outcome of the consultation and to give views on the 
revised proposals. 

Nick Boyle  

Cycling Update 

To consider progress made against the cycling strategy. 

Richard Duffill  

Cemeteries 

To consider the council’s cemetery provision. 

Dave Page  

Registrars 

To discuss the services offered by the registry office. 

Dave Page   

 

P
age 40



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 4 of 5 
 

24 April 2017 –  Commercial Waste, Parking and School Travel 
Planning 

 
 

 

Commercial Waste 

To consider the commercial waste service offered by the council. 

Sue Harris / Kathy 
May 

 

 

Parking 

To consider the improvements made to parking services. 

David Taylor / Nick 
Boyle 

 

School Travel Planning 

To consider the work done by the council to help get children to and 
from schools safely. 

Richard Evans  

28 June 2017 – 20mph, Highway Maintenance and Parks  
 

 

20 mph Zones 

To consider the implementation of additional 20mph zones in the 
borough. 

Nick Boyle 
 

Highway Maintenance 

To consider the Highway Maintenance programme and the 
effectiveness of the service. 

Ian Hawthorn  

Parks 

To talk about the options for the management of the borough’s parks. 

Dave Page / Ullash 
Karia 

 

 

 

 

P
age 41



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2016-17 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

 

CSERS PAC REMIT:- 

 Transport, including roads maintenance, other transport infrastructure 

 Parking policy, traffic management and the relationship with TfL 

 Planning policy and performance and the impact of developments on transport infrastructure and the environment 

 The local environment  

 Street Scene 

 Parks and open spaces 

 Recycling and environmental sustainability 

 Waste disposal, street cleansing, refuse collection  

 Cemeteries 

 Biodiversity 

 Quality of life 

 Community safety 

 Tackling anti-social behaviour 

 Licensing and gambling 

 Neighbourhood governance 

P
age 42


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 School Travel Plans
	School Travel Plans Appendix 4
	School Travel Plans Appendix 5a
	School Travel Plans Appendix 5b

	5 The Future of Parking in Hammersmith and Fulham
	6 Commercial Waste Service
	7 Work Programme and Dates of Future Meetings

